
ADDENDUM NO. 4 
DATE:     February 16, 2016 
FROM: City of Grand Junction Purchasing Division 
TO: All Offerors 
RE: 2016 Waterline Replacement Project IFB-4158-16-NJ 

Offerors responding to the above referenced solicitation are hereby instructed that the 
requirements have been clarified, modified, superseded and supplemented as to this date as 
hereinafter described. 

Please make note of the following clarifications and updates: 

1. Clarification – The City’s Water Dept. will provide all necessary equipment and
materials for the Hot Taps that are 6” and larger.  For example, the City will provide the
tapping saddles, gate valves and all other appurtenances required for the hot tap.  The
Contractor shall connect to the outlet side of the gate valve for pipe installation.

2. Replace the Bid Schedule issued in Addendum #3 with the updated Bid Schedule
that is attached to Addendum #4. The updated Addendum #4 Bid Schedule is
provided in both PDF and Excel format.

3. Replace the Construction Plans issued in Addendum #3 with the updated
Construction Plans that are attached to Addendum #4.

4. There’s concern about the possibility of scratches or gouges occurring to the
pipe during the sliplining process.

Per Special Provision SP-1 Section 102 – Materials – Section 3.02.B states: Any
scratch or gouge greater than 10% of the wall thickness will be considered significant
and can be rejected unless determined acceptable by the Owner or Engineer.

During the sliplining process, there will be open trenches where the Contractor and
Project Inspector can see the pipe being pulled through the existing 24” pipe. At these
locations, if the 18” PVC pipe is showing signs of large scratches and/or gouges, the
sliplining operation shall stop. The Contractor and Inspector/Engineer shall work to
determine what’s causing the damage to the pipe and remedy the problem before
sliplining operations commence.



The City TV inspection completed before the sliplining starts should help identify if there 
are any shape edges or objects that can potentially cause damage to the pipe during 
sliplining. 

5. Thrustblocks – All new thrustblocks installed along the new 18” PVC waterline shall be
constructed in accordance with the area dimensions provided in the Table per City
Standard Detail W-08.

All thrustblocks will not be paid for separately, but shall be included in the cost of the
project per Section 108.13 in the City of Grand Junction’s Standard Specifications for
the Construction of Underground Utilities.

6. Purging out the air from within the new waterline for pressure testing – It shall be
the Contractor’s responsibility to determine a plan for purging the air out of the new 18”
pipe for pressure testing.  The Contractor can install a tapping saddle with a corporation
stop at the high point of the pipe section for air removal.  After successfully passing all
tests, the Contractor can remove the corporation stop and install a threaded plug insert.
The cost of the tapping saddle, corporation stop and plug will not be paid for separately,
but shall be included in the cost of the project.

7. For Information Only - Attached to Addendum #4 is a Project Profile of a successful
sliplining project the City of Thornton, Colorado completed several years ago using
Underground Solutions fusible PVC pipe. This Project Profile is provided to Bidders as
information only and to provide an example of a similar project to the City of Grand
Junction’s proposed sliplining project.

8. Question 8: Pipe Fusion time is listed as 12 days. 3,600 feet of pipe equates to 300
feet per day. What equipment and man power will your staff require to fuse the pipe
up?
Response: Please See Addendum #3.

9. Question 9: Is it possible to run two fusion crews to cut the man days for fusion
down?
Response: No

10. Question 10: Pipe rollers, do you have any specs on rollers and what spacing do you 
require? Are pipe line skids acceptable as cribbing support?
Response: We do not have any specifications on pipe rollers. I'm not sure what 
pipeline skids are. I don't think there's a spacing requirement for supports just as long 
as the contractor doesn't bend the pipe beyond the minimum bending radius.

11. Question 11: Understanding how your pull head fits over the outside of the 18 inch
PVC, what is the OD of the pull head and the bolts that protrude out from the pull
head? Do you know what the ID of the existing 24 inch is? How tight are the space
tolerances?
Response: Please See Addendum #3.

12. Question 12: Tail trench requirements, based on 48 inches of cover over the existing
24 inch pipe, how long does the tail trench need to be in order to stay within the bend
radius of the pipe?
Response: Please see Appendix B within the Bid Documents that shows the pit
diagram. It's about the sixth page in Appendix B.



13. Questions 13: Pipe deflection, can the 18 inch pipe be successfully pulled through 
any mechanical fittings that may exist in the 24 inch pipe?  
Response: At this time, all fittings and valves will need to be removed before 
installation of 18" fusible pipe. 
 

14. Question 14: What are the acceptable wear tolerances of the fusible PVC pipe?  
Response: Per the Fusible Pipe Specification, any scratch or gouge greater than 10% 
of the pipe wall thickness will be considered significant and can be rejected unless 
determined acceptable by the owner or engineer. We'll be able to see the pipe while 
it's being installed from one of the many open trench areas to see if the pipe has any 
larger scratches or gouges. 
 

15. Question 15: Understanding the handling care given to the to the fusible pipe during 
the fusion process and the need to use rollers to support it during the pullback, do you 
have any concerns for pulling the pipe 1,750 feet through a concrete lined steel pipe 
as a part of the install process?  
Response: According to Underground Solutions, contractors have pulled close to 
7,000 LF for a slipline project. I think the limiting factor is the size of the hydraulic 
pulling machine and what the machine is capable of pulling. 
 

16. Question 16: Assuming that the contractor pulls the pipe in according to the plan 
requirements, who takes responsibility for any nicks or scars in the pipe that are 
outside of Underground Solutions pipe spec tolerances?  
Response: We will have to inspect the pipe from one of the open trench areas during 
the installation stage. If the Owner and/or Contractor sees damage being done during 
the installation process, operations will need to stop and we'll need to investigate 
what's causing the damage to the pipe. I'd think that during the TV inspection stage of 
the project, we should be able to identify areas that might cause damage to the pipe. 
 

17. Question 17: Are there any other fusible pipe installs that are similar in design to this 
project? If so, is there anything documented on them? Any best practices that came as 
a result of those installs?  

 Response: See the attachment from a sliplining project the City of Thornton 
completed in the past.  

 
18. Question 18: Is an Excel bid schedule available for submission similar to that 

provided for the North Avenue Project recently bid? 
Response: Please refer to Item 2 of this Addendum 4. 
 

19. Question 19: Underground Solutions, according to their brochure, does not 
recommend taps over 2" diameter on the 18" fusible pipe. Is there any special 
materials, fittings, etc. that may be required in order to complete those taps that are 

over 2" diameter and will the Contractor be resposible for providing them? 
Response: Please refer to Item 1 of this Addendum 4. 
 

20. Question 20: We have concern about the possibility of scaring or scraping the fusible 
pipe when pulling into place due to the concrete pipe lining. Section 3.02B of the 
specifications talks about this. Has the City made allowances for this possibility is 
acquiring additional pipe and also additional fusion time in the trench to conduct a 
repair? 
Response: Please refer to Item 4 of this Addendum 4. 
 

21. Question 21: Bid Item 28 is for plugging ends of abandoned pipe with concrete. The 
pay item is by the foot. How many feet is required to be plugged? Will the new PVC 



pipe be required to be centered within the steel pipe prior to placing concrete plug or 
will it be allowed to rest on the bottom of the host pipe?  
Response: Please refer to the updated bid schedule. New PVC can rest on the 
bottom of the host pipe. 
 

22. Question 22: If item 46 is for top mat of asphalt including the T-Top, shouldn't it be 
larger in quantity then item 45 the bottom mat?  
Response: Please refer to the updated bid schedule. 
 

23. Question 23: On Sheet 11 of the "as constructed" drawings for the existing 24" steel 
line, there is a note refering to the detail for the "strap anchor" as shown on Sheet 12. 
Is Sheet 12 available for review of this detail? Due to the apparent size of this restraint 
and the note stating the removal is incidental to the pipe removal, this information 
would be helpful.  
Response: Please refer to the updated construction plans. 
 

24. Question 24: City Standards - W-07, Note 3 states that thrust blocks for waterlines 
larger than 12" shall be designed for the location. Is there a design available for 
bidding purposes? With the shallow cover at the abutments, it appears that some type 
of tie-down straps my be necessary, similar to what is shown on the as built drawings. 
Response: Please refer to Item 5 of this Addendum 4. 
 

25. Question 25: City Standards - W-08, Table of Values. Can this information please be 
provided for help in bidding process? 
Response: Please refer to Item 5 of this Addendum 4. 

 
26. Question 26: Sheet 6 of the drawings. Center of page showing Indian Wash Crossing 

detail. Note 400 states fusible 18" PVC across the wash. There is also notation with a 
dividing line showing fusible PVC both directions. This similar notation is also shown 
on Sheet 5 of the drawings in the lower right hand corner however, the note there is 
note 433 which is not fusible. Please clarify which type of pipe is desired to be installed 
across the wash and within the area of all the fittings associated with this crossing.  
Response: Please refer to the updated construction plans. 
 

27. Question 27: In an effort to purge all the air from the new installation for testing, 
disinfection and operation purposes, there appears to be a lack of an air vac on the 
Indian Wash crossing. Should one be installed at this location? 
Response: Please refer to Item 6 of this Addendum 4. 
 

28. Question 28: There is various types of existing landscape surfaces that will be 
disturbed during the construction process. We do not identify any restoration bid items 
to cover this work. How will landscape and driveway restoration be paid for? 
Response: Please refer to the update bid schedule. 
 
 

The original solicitation for the project noted above is amended as noted. 

All other conditions of subject remain the same. 

Respectfully, 

 
Nicholas C Jones, Buyer 
City of Grand Junction, Colorado 



ADDENDUM #4
Item 

No.

CDOT, 

City Ref. Description Quantity Units Unit  Price Total Price

1 108.2 Water Main (2") (HDPE)

(Service Line) (If lead service line is

encounter, water service shall be

replaced to meter) (Includes cost of

connection to existing pipe)

10. Lin. Ft. $ ____________ $ ____________

2 108.2 Water Main (6") (C-900 PVC, DR-18)

(Includes cost of connection to

existing waterline / valve / fitting)

285. Lin. Ft. $ ____________ $ ____________

3 108.2 Water Main (8") (C-900 PVC, DR-18)

(Includes cost of connection to

existing waterline / valve / fitting)

85. Lin. Ft. $ ____________ $ ____________

4 108.2 Water Main (10") (C-900 PVC, DR-18)

(Includes cost of connection to

existing waterline / valve / fitting)

15. Lin. Ft. $ ____________ $ ____________

5 108.2 Water Main (18") (C-905 PVC, DR-25)

(Includes cost of connection to

existing waterline / valve / fitting)

230. Lin. Ft. $ ____________ $ ____________

6 108.2 Water Main (18") (Fusible C-905 PVC,

DR-25) (Install Only)  (Includes all equipment, 

labor, fuel, and materials for fusing pipe and

pulling pipe through existing 24" steel pipe)

 (The City has already purchased the 18"

Fusible pipe from Underground Solutions)

The Bidder shall not include pipe material

costs for this Bid Item.

3,650. Lin. Ft. $ ____________ $ ____________

7 108.2 Imported Trench Backfill (Class 3)

(Includes haul and disposal of 

unsuitable excavated material)

(Assumed Unit Weight = 133 lbs/ft
3
)

300. Ton $ ____________ $ ____________

8 108.3 Gate Valve (6") 1. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

9 108.3 8" Blind Flange 1. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

10 108.3 18" x 6" Tee (MJ x FL) 1. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

11 108.3 Butterfly Valve (18") 4. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

12 108.3 Elbow (6" x 22.5 deg) (MJ) 2. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

13 108.3 Elbow (6" x 45 deg) (MJ) 8. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

14 108.3 Elbow (8" x 45 deg) (MJ) 6. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

15 108.3 Elbow (18" x 22.5 deg) (MJ) 4. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

Bid Schedule: 2016 Waterline Replacement Project
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ADDENDUM #4
Item 

No.

CDOT, 

City Ref. Description Quantity Units Unit  Price Total Price

Bid Schedule: 2016 Waterline Replacement Project

16 108.3 Elbow (18" x 45 deg) (MJ) 6. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

17 108.3 Reducer (20" x 18") (MJ) 1. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

18 108.3 18" Solid Sleeve Coupling (MJ) 7. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

19 108.3 Fire Hydrant Assembly 6. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

20 108.4 3/4" Water Service Line (Type K

Copper) (If Lead or Poly service line

is encountered, water service shall

be replaced to meter) (Includes cost of

connection to existing pipe)

160. Lin. Ft. $ ____________ $ ____________

21 108.4 Tapping Saddle (18" x 3/4") 19. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

22 108.4 Tapping Saddle (18" x 2") 1. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

23 108.4 Corporation Stop (3/4") 19. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

24 108.4 Corporation Stop (2") 1. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

25 108.7 Granular Stabilization Material

(Type B) (Crushed Rock)

(Includes haul and disposal of

unsuitable excavated material)

(Assumed material unit weight = 

138 lbs/ft
3
)

200. Ton $ ____________ $ ____________

26 202 Removal of Bush 1. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

27 202 Removal of Tree 2. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

28 202 Abandon Pipe (Abandon pipe 

by plugging ends with concrete)

70. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

29 202 Abandon Existing Water Valve

(Close valve, remove top half of

existing valve box, fill cavity to 

finished subgrade with flow-fill

material)

9. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

30 202 Remove Existing Fire Hydrant

(Return Hydrant to City Shops)

6. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

31 202 Remove Existing Pipe (Various sizes

and material type)

400. Lin. Ft. $ ____________ $ ____________

32 202 Remove Existing Water Valve 7. Each $ ____________ $ ____________
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ADDENDUM #4
Item 

No.

CDOT, 

City Ref. Description Quantity Units Unit  Price Total Price

Bid Schedule: 2016 Waterline Replacement Project

33 202 Removal of Asphalt Mat (Planing)

(T-Top Section) (2" Depth)

(North Ave., 28 Road, Orchard Ave.)

(Per City Standard Detail GU-03)

430. Sq. Yd. $ ____________ $ ____________

34 202 Removal of Asphalt Mat (Full-Depth)

(Per City Standard Detail GU-03)

520. Sq. Yd. $ ____________ $ ____________

35 202 Removal of Concrete

(Saw cut and remove concrete as

shown) (Includes but not limited to 

curb, gutter, sidewalk, driveway, 

slabs, V-pan, curb ramps, intersection

corners, aprons, and concrete walls.)

210. Sq. Ft. $ ____________ $ ____________

36 203 Disposal of Radioactive Material

(City Shops Location)

100. Cu. Yd. $ ____________ $ ____________

37 206 Structure Backfill (Flow-Fill) 27. Cu. Yd. $ ____________ $ ____________

38 208 Storm Drain Inlet Protection (Silt-Sack)

(Includes Maintenance & Removal

of Inlet Protection)

10. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

39 208 Concrete Washout Facility 1. Lump Sum $ ____________ $ ____________

40 210 Repair damage to unlocated

irrigation lines, various sizes and

materials (1" to 12" dia.)

3. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

41 210 Reset Guardrail 50. Lin. Ft. $ ____________ $ ____________

42 210 Reset Sprinkler System

(Complete in Place)

6. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

43 212 Sod (Includes 6" Thick Imported Topsoil 

placed prior to sod placement)

100. Sq. Ft. $ ____________ $ ____________

44 304 Aggregate Base Course (Class 6)

(15" Thick) (4' wide +/-)

520. Sq. Yd. $ ____________ $ ____________

45 401 Hot Bituminous Pavement (Patching)

(4" Thick) (Grading SX, PG 64-22, GYR=75)

(Two 2" Lifts) (Bottom Two Mats)

(See City Standard Detail GU-03)

520. Sq. Yd. $ ____________ $ ____________

46 401 Hot Bituminous Pavement (Patching)

(2" Thick) (Grading SX, PG 64-22, GYR=75)

(T-Top) (See City Standard Detail GU-03)

(Top Mat)

595. Sq. Yd. $ ____________ $ ____________

47 407 Emulsified Asphalt (Tack Coat) 95. Gallon $ ____________ $ ____________
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ADDENDUM #4
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CDOT, 

City Ref. Description Quantity Units Unit  Price Total Price

Bid Schedule: 2016 Waterline Replacement Project

48 608 Concrete Curb and Gutter

(Match in Kind)

100. Lin. Ft. $ ____________ $ ____________

49 608 Concrete Curb, Gutter and Sidewalk

(Match in Kind)

3. Sq. Yd. $ ____________ $ ____________

50 608 Concrete Drainage Pan

(Match in Kind)

6. Sq. Yd. $ ____________ $ ____________

51 608 Cap Top Half of Sewer Pipe in

concrete per Std. Detail GU-04

(20' long)

2. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

52 620 Portable Sanitary Facility 1. Each $ ____________ $ ____________

53 625 Construction Surveying 1. Lump Sum $ ____________ $ ____________

54 626 Mobilization 1. Lump Sum $ ____________ $ ____________

55 630 Traffic Control Plan 1. Lump Sum $ ____________ $ ____________

56 630 Traffic Control (Complete in Place) 1. Lump Sum $ ____________ $ ____________

57 630 Flagging 100. Hour $ ____________ $ ____________

MCR  Minor Contract Revisions  - - -  - - -      - - -     50,000.00$       

Bid Amount: $

Bid Amount:

 dollars

Contractor's Name:

Contractor's Address:

Contractor's Phone #:
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Underground Solutions (UGSI) provides infrastructure technologies for water/wastewater applications. UGSI’s Fusible PVC™ products, 
including Fusible C-900

®
, Fusible C-905

®
 and FPVC

®
, contain a patented PVC formulation that, when combined with UGSI’s patented 

fusion process, results in a monolithic, fully-restrained, gasket-free, leak-free piping system. UGSI’s Duraliner™ is a patented, close-fit 
pipeline renewal system creating a stand-alone structural liner.   
 

PP-1162 Rev.1 12/13/2012 

 

Project Profile  

Fusible C-900® ● Fusible C-905® ● FPVC®  
   

www.undergroundsolutions.com 

City of Thornton, Colorado Reduces Rehabilitation Impact to Residents  
with Trenchless Slipline Installation 

 
The City of Thornton, Colorado was incorporated in 1956 with a population of 8,640.  Over the succeeding 56 
years, the population has grown to over 121,000 and the oldest portions of the City’s pipeline infrastructure are 
nearing the end of their useful lives.  In 2010, an old and deteriorating 20-inch steel transmission line under 
Washington Street emerged as the top candidate for rehabilitation due to its failure frequency and annual cost to 
maintain; so the City started investigating rehabilitation options. 
 
Because of the location of the failing 20-inch steel waterline beneath one of the City’s busiest streets, the City’s 
management team projected that conventional dig and replace construction would require shutting down the 
entire street for long periods.  To avoid significant inconvenience to local businesses and residents, trenchless 
rehabilitation was selected as the most desirable solution.  Several options were considered, including cured-in-
place pipe (CIPP) and sliplining with Fusible PVC™ pipe.  In the end, a 16-inch DR21 Fusible C-905® slipline 
presented the most attractive solution for the following reasons: 
 

 Trenchless installation allowed for relatively small pipe entrance and pull pits on either end of the 
slipline.  

 The result would be a continuous, gasket-free, monolithic, fully-restrained and leak-free pipeline. 

 The slipline was a fully structural pipeline, versus a lined host pipe. 

 16-inch DR21 Fusible C-905® pipe provided the largest inside diameter of any available thermoplastic 
pipe with equivalent pressure rating that would fit inside the 20-inch steel pipeline. 

 Fusible PVC™ pipe has superior allowable pull-force compared with other thermoplastic pipe, resulting 
in longer pulls with less risk (Fusible PVC™ pipe set a new slipline record in 2012 with a single-pull, 
7,000 LF slipline). 

 Fusible PVC™ pipe readily connects to standard waterworks fittings with no special adaptors required. 
 
BTrenchless was selected to perform the rehabilitation. Steve Jacques, VP of Operations, commented, “We love 
sliplining with Fusible PVC™ pipe and wish that more people would recognize the benefits it provides.  Spoils are 
greatly reduced from the project, we don’t have to shut down the entire street, and it’s fast!  If you can get away 
with a slightly reduced inner diameter pipe, sliplining with Fusible PVC™ pipe is a great solution.”   
 
Construction kicked-off in April 2012.  Laydown room for the full 1,680 LF length of Fusible C-905® pipe presented 
a slight problem, so the pipe length was broken into three segments that were fused together as needed during 
the pull-back operation. Pull-back was accomplished with a TT Technologies hydraulic Grundoburst® 800G.  Due 
to the ease and affordability of the project, the City of Thornton is planning a second phase in the fall of 2012. 

 
 
 
 

Pipeline Details and Project Summary 

Project/Location: Washington Street Waterline Rehab/Thornton, Colorado 

Pipe Details: 1,680 LF of 16” DR21 Blue 

Pressure Test: 150 psi for 2 hours 

Owner/Engineer: Jason Pierce, former City of Thornton Project Engineer 



 

 
Underground Solutions (UGSI) provides infrastructure technologies for water/wastewater applications. UGSI’s Fusible PVC™ products, 
including Fusible C-900

®
, Fusible C-905

®
 and FPVC

®
, contain a patented PVC formulation that, when combined with UGSI’s patented 

fusion process, results in a monolithic, fully-restrained, gasket-free, leak-free piping system. UGSI’s Duraliner™ is a patented, close-fit 
pipeline renewal system creating a stand-alone structural liner.   
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Project Profile  

Fusible C-900® ● Fusible C-905® ● FPVC®  
   

www.undergroundsolutions.com 

 

Fusion Operations 

   

Fused Pipe String 

 

Pipe Insertion –  

Facing South 

 

Pipe Entrance Pit – Facing North 
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